
 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
JUNE 29, 2017 

 
Present:  

Scott Hodges, Chairperson Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner 

General Public: See Attached List 

Thomas Good, Commissioner    

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

 

 

Absent: 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.; with Vice Chair Ryan, Commissioner 

Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good, Commissioner Goggin, and Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the May 25, 2017, South Broward 

Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried 

unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. UPDATE ON PARADISE CINEMARK PROPERTY, TOWN OF DAVIE, FL 

 

District Director Hart said that representatives of Southwest Broward Theaters Holdings, Ltd. 

(SWBTH) were present to provide the Board with an update on SWBTH’s interest in purchasing 

lake property from SBDD as part of a future development plan for the Paradise Cinemark property 

in Davie. 

 

Previously, Mr. Paul Lepine had presented a conceptual development plan to the SBDD Board, 

which requires the acquisition of certain lake property that is currently owned by SBDD.  At this 

time, the project is continuing to move forward and SWBTH has expressed an interest in presenting 

an offer and reaching an agreement with SBDD on the acquisition of the required lake property. 

 



 

 -2- 

 

Under SBDD’s Policies and Guidelines for the Sale, Lease, Conveyance, or Transfer of Surplus 

Land, which were adopted in March 2107, the District would be able to effect a private sale of the 

lake property, based on the following factors: 

 

 The value of the land as determined by the Broward County Property Appraiser is less than 

$25,000. 

 The land could be considered as “surplus land” with the construction and inclusion of new, 

additional surface water management areas which will off-set the loss of storage currently being 

provided by the lake area to be sold. 

 SWBTH is the owner of all adjacent property which surrounds the lake parcels in question. 

 

Therefore, there would be no need to send notice(s) to any other adjacent property owner, and 

SBDD could move forward with a private sale of the land to SWBTH. 

   

District Director Hart said that no action was needed from the Board at this time, other than a 

concurrence that a private sale of the lake property in question may be considered at a future Board 

meeting.  The Board is not guaranteeing or warranting that any such land sale will be approved, 

but rather, only that the Board would consider such a land sale. The private sale of the surplus land 

would need to follow the above referenced SBDD Policies & Guidelines, and if desired, the Board 

could establish additional procedures for how SWBTH should present its offer to SBDD for review 

and consideration by the Board. 

 

Commissioner Goggin stated that the original lake was deeded over to SBDD when the property 

was finalized for the District to take over and maintain.  District Director Hart clarified and said 

that the lake was conveyed to the District during the platting of the property and during the original 

development of the property.  Under the new redevelopment plan, SWBTH will be entering into 

an agreement with the District to do all of the maintenance on the lakes and water management 

system.   

 

Chair Hodges asked if the District had received anything new since the last meeting.  District 

Director Hart said, nothing as far as plans or calculations; just additional discussions with the 

property owner on their interest in moving forward.  He said that they had discussions with the 

Town of Davie; and from what he understands, the project is moving forward and the next step for 

them is to coordinate with the District on the acquisition of the lake property.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that there was a piece of land that was owned by the Town 

of Davie that SWBTH had wanted to acquire.  She asked for confirmation.  District Director Hart 

said yes, and that SWBTH had already purchased it.   

 

Ms. Nectaria Chakas, Attorney on behalf of Southwest Broward Theater Holdings, Ltd. (SWBTH) 

explained further and said that they have already appeared before the Davie Town; and that their 

next step is to submit a letter of intent before they move on to the next stage which is the contract, 

but the Town was amenable to the sale; right now the land is not being used for anything, so she 

believes that there is a strong interest.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked Ms. Chakas at what point is the public going to be involved in this.  

Ms. Chakas said that the public will be involved probably sometime next month at the Town; and 

that they will be having a public meeting.  Commissioner Mersinger asked will that meeting be 

posted anywhere else.  Ms. Chakas said it will probably be posted at Town Hall.   

Ms. Chakas noted some additional items that SWBTH had completed since the last meeting. 



 

 -3- 

 

 

Commissioner Good asked Ms. Chakas if they needed to change the use of the lake property 

through the Town.  Ms. Chakas replied that there would be a partial change of use.  Part of the use 

would be for a structural building, and part of it would be for parking; but most of the existing lake 

will continue to function as a lake.  Commissioner Good noted that there will be dredge and fill 

activity involved.  He asked Ms. Chakas what is the current zoning of the lake. She explained (PUD 

zoning).  Commissioner Good asked if there was a specific time frame for when the lake could get 

filled.  Ms. Chakas said that it would be at least 12 months on the permitting, but she did not know 

how long on the actual filling of the lake.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that they would need to go through a rezoning for 

commercial property.   

 

District Director Hart commented that staff’s recommendation would be for the District to convey 

over the entire lake parcel, and maintain an easement over the remaining water portion. At that 

point, they would sit down and negotiate a purchase price, based on the lake area that’s needed for 

the redevelopment, and forward it to the Board.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger added that it was also noted that they would be responsible for any 

maintenance of the lake.  District Director Hart replied yes, and that would be a condition of any 

purchase.   

 

Commissioner Good pointed out a reference in the SBDD policy that states . . . “that if the land is 

worth $25,000 or less, as determined by an appraiser designated by the Board or as determined by 

the Broward County Property Appraiser (BCPA) . . . the Board may effect a private sale of the 

land”.  He said that there is an “or” included there.  He has no doubt that the current use of the land 

is worth less than $25,000, but typically when you do appraisals, you do a highest and best use.  He 

asked District Director Hart how does that factor into this situation.   

 

District Director Hart said that the discussion from the District’s perspective, is that the appraisal 

will be based on the highest and best use of the land which will be commercial property with the 

restaurants and with the building.  It will not be based on a “lake”; and that will be the starting point 

as far as the District is concerned in negotiating a fair price for the sale.  As far as highest and best 

use, there are costs to bring the property up to that point.  They would have to fill the property, 

perform the construction, etc.  

 

Commissioner Good asked District Director Hart, if he gets an appraisal that shows the land is 

worth more than $25,000; how he would he handle this problem.  District Director Hart said that 

in talking to the District Attorney, as long as the land value as determined by the BCPA is less the 

$25,000, that gives the District the ability to effect a private land sale; and what the District 

negotiates as far as price, is separate from that initial valuation of the land.   

 

Commissioner Good had concerns with the language in the policy, and asked if the District was 

giving up their right to choose an appraiser.  District Director Hart replied no, not at all.  

Commissioner Good asked for further clarification.  If the Board chose to do an appraisal and it 

comes in more than $25,000, then there is a potential a conflict.  District Director Hart said he does 

not believe that there is a conflict, because there are different ways that you can appraise property.  

He said that there is no distinction as to how it’s appraised, and the District can use whatever 

method that they want to negotiate the best price for the District.  He said that the clause 

Commissioner Good is referencing is just to set the initial standard (value) in allowing the District 



 

 -4- 

 

to move forward with the private land sale; and it does not preclude the District from valuing the 

property in other ways.  He said that he would defer to the attorney, but in talking to him, he does 

not believe there is a conflict.   

 

Commissioner Good had concerns that there is a conflict with the policy in regards to the appraisal.  

He said that the policy allows for the use of one of two conditions in determining the value of the 

land.  The first condition is that the Board uses an appraisal; if the appraisal comes back, and it’s 

over $25,000, that does not allow the Director to have private negotiations.  He said the other 

alternative is to use the $25,000 cap as determined by the BCPA.  He stated that if we believe that 

the land is worth less than $25,000, and you get an appraisal, and the property turns out to be 

$26,000; according to the language in the policy, the Director is not able to go into private 

negotiations. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked would that not mean that the Board gets to negotiate privately.  

Commissioner Good replied no, that there are other elements in the policy that then dictate how the 

process moves forward.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh opined that no matter what the land appraises for, the sale is not 

contingent upon an appraisal.  She said that if the Board negotiates a sales price, that is the price.  

She suggested that the District obtain at least two appraisals as a comparison.  She said that if they 

do use the highest and the best use, and it is a commercial zoning, it should be worth more than 

$25,000.  She said that for the basis now (for the District to move forward), the County states that 

it is worth less than $25,000.  She would like a clarification from Attorney Bell to make sure that 

we are all on the same page.   

 

Commissioner Good said that he is in total agreement with Commissioner Minnaugh.  He said that 

how the Board gets to that point (to where Commissioner Minnaugh alluded) is where he sees the 

conflict.  He said it can be resolved if the Board says that they don’t want the appraisal.  District 

Director Hart replied that he will review this issue with Attorney Bell, and if there needs to be a 

clarification on that particular paragraph, they will do so.   

 

Mr. Paul Lepine stated that the land in question, as it exists now, and based on what the County 

(BCPA) says it is worth, is a very low value, because the rights to develop it do not currently exist.  

He said that if SWBTH purchases the land without the required approvals; and not conditioned 

upon obtaining those approvals; it’s just a cash sale and that’s the end of it.  He said that the cost 

and risk of getting the zoning is on them; so the highest and best use does not occur as a value.  He 

said that a piece of land has different values based upon a bundle of rights that are allowed under 

the municipal, state, federal law, etc.  He said they (SWBTH) would have the obligation and the 

risk to do all of that, and to obtain the necessary rights to develop the land as a commercial use. 

 

There was no further discussion and District Director Hart said that he would follow-up with 

SWBTH on the next step. 

 

B. REQUEST TO PURCHASE NEW EQUIPMENT 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to purchase a piece of equipment called a “Weedoo” and 

indicated that SBDD staff had researched the benefits and pricing for the purchase of this 

equipment. 

 



 

 -5- 

 

Through research and in-field demonstrations, staff has determined that the “Weedoo” will add an 

effective and efficient piece of equipment to the District’s existing fleet of maintenance equipment 

and vehicles.  The “Weedoo” is a small, versatile aquatic plant harvester that can perform a number 

of important functions for the District.  Because of its size and versatility, the “Weedoo” should be 

very effective in helping to manage aquatic weeds and plants in narrow canals and tight water 

bodies.  One of the main uses of this equipment will be to work in unison with the District’s grapple 

truck to remove aquatic plants along the District’s trash racks (at its pump stations) and at other 

critical locations throughout the District.  In this application, the District will be able to gain the 

full benefit of the “Weedoo” without having to “double-handle” the weeds and vegetation that are 

being removed from the waterbodies.  In emergency situations, the “Weedoo” can operate 

independently of the grapple truck to remove weeds/debris/vegetation/etc. from waterways and to 

help clear trash racks, as needed. 

  

District Director Hart recommended the purchase of a 2017 Weedoo P-3002 TigerCat and indicated 

that this same piece of equipment was recently purchased by the City of Miramar through a 

publically advertised, competitive bid process. 

 

The City of Miramar advertised for bids under Invitation For Bid (IFB) No. 17-008, entitled 

“Aquatic Plant Harvester” and received two bids by the closing date of April 6, 2017.  The City 

determined that the lowest responsive, responsible bid was submitted by Weedoo Greenboat, Inc. 

in the amount of $69,540.00 and the City Commission approved the award of the bid under 

Resolution No. 17-129.  

 

District Director Hart said that SBDD contacted Weedoo Greenboat, Inc. and they have indicated 

their willingness to honor the same bid price of $69,540.00 for SBDD, which includes a 5.00% 

discount.   

 

The purchase of the new equipment will be funded through the District’s General Operating 

Account as part of the District’s 2016-2017 budget under line item 1765 – Herbicides.  

 

District Director Hart requested approval for the purchase of a 2017 Weedoo P-3002 TigerCat as 

described above from Weedoo Greenboat, Inc. in the amount of $69,540.00.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for the purchase of a 2017 Weedoo P-3002 TigerCat 

from Weedoo Greenboat, Inc. in the amount of $69,540.00.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Goggin. 

 

Commissioner Goggin asked if the model that the City of Miramar is purchasing was the gasoline 

powered model or the diesel powered model; and did it follow what the SBDD staff needed for their 

use.  District Director Hart said that he believes that it is the gasoline powered model and it does 

follow exactly what staff is looking for. 

 

The questions was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

C. APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES AND 

ESTABLISH AN AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

District Director Hart commented that SBDD’s current contract for Annual Financial Auditing 

Services expires at the end of the current fiscal year, and as such, the District will need to advertise 

for the selection of a firm to provide Annual Financial Auditing Services for the next 1-5 years. 



 

 -6- 

 

He noted that in accordance with SBDD Resolution No. 2012-07 the Board shall establish an Audit 

Committee comprised of one Board member, the District Director and one other person to assist 

the Board in selecting an auditor to conduct the annual financial audit. 

The Audit Committee shall establish factors for the evaluation of audit services; prepare a Request 

for Proposals for Annual Financial Auditing Services (RFP); and rank the firms in order of 

preference as to the most highly qualified to perform these services.  It is anticipated that the RFP 

will allow the District to award a 1-year contract beginning on October 1, 2017 and ending on 

September 30, 2018, with an option to extend the contract for four (4) additional 1-year periods 

through September 30, 2022.  

The cost of Annual Financial Auditing Services are included in the District’s annual budget with 

funding through the SBDD General Operating account.  

 

District Director Hart requested approval to advertise for Annual Financial Auditing Services 

beginning on October 1, 2107 and to establish an Audit Committee in accordance with SBDD 

Resolution No. 2012-07. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to advertise for Annual Financial Auditing Services 

beginning on October 1, 2107 and to establish an Audit Committee in accordance with SBDD 

Resolution No. 2012-07.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-Woodall. 

 

In discussion, Commissioner Minnaugh asked if this would be approved at the September 11th Board 

meeting.  District Director Hart said that the latest date for approval would be September 11th where 

the recommendation would come before the Board, and it would give the District plenty of time to 

have the contract in place by October 1st.  She asked if the Board is meeting on August 24th.  District 

Director Hart said yes.  He said that in the past, the Audit Committee would have one meeting to 

evaluate the submittals and then there is an option where the committee may interview the firms for 

additional consideration.  He said that previously, the Audit Committee was able to do their 

evaluation and make the recommendation to the Board without having to do any interviews.   

 

He said those two dates (for the Audit Committee to meet) will be advertised, and any discussions 

of the Audit Committee would be open to the public.  When the ad was placed in the paper 

previously, the meeting dates for the Audit Committee were included in the ad so that the District 

would meet their obligation for advertising; and allow the public to attend those meetings.  They 

don’t participate, but they are able to attend and listen.   

 

Commissioner Good wanted clarification on how the auditing services are contracted for 1-5 years.  

District Director Hart explained that the previous contract was set up as a 1 year contract with the 

option to extend for 4 additional years for a total of 5 years.  Commissioner Good then commented 

that the requirement for the Audit Committee in the Resolution that states “one other person” needs 

to be better defined and approved by the Board.  He suggested that the “one other person” should 

be a person from the public.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked what happens if the advertisement goes out and this person does not 

show up to the meeting for some reason.  She wanted to know if they can still do business without 

them at the meeting.  District Director Hart said that as long as there are two members present (from 

a 3 member committee) that would constitute as a quorum.  Commissioner Minnaugh said that her 

concern was that the process would not be slowed down.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked how the Board would choose that “one other person’ from the 



 

 -7- 

 

public.  Commissioner Good said they (Board members) could recommend someone.  There was 

further discussion as to how to select the “one other person” from the public.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh stated that she feels that the District’s finance manager should be on the 

committee, because that individual will be working with that auditor every month/year.  She also 

said that she is okay with staying on the committee.   

 

Chair Hodges asked if the Audit Committee was established by Resolution.  District Director Hart 

said no, it is established by the Board.   

 

Commissioner Good suggested that they open it to the public, and that they should have one more 

meeting before they review bids, so that each Board member can bring in a name from their 

constituents, and vet it out.   

 

District Director Hart said that under the state guidelines, the Audit Committee needs to establish 

the criteria; and that has to be completed before the advertisement goes out.  He further stated that 

there is a state statute on the process for the selection, and he explained what those guidelines 

required.  He said that the advertisement really needs to go out before the next Board meeting in 

July.  It has to go out for two weeks, they need to get the submittals, and then bring the 

recommendation back to the Board before the September 11th meeting.  He is not sure that there will 

be enough time if they were to wait until July 28th to establish the Audit Committee; to prepare the 

advertisement; and to give the committee enough time to do their work.   

 

District Director Hart then said that there is flexibility if the Board wants to defer, or take additional 

time to consider other members for the committee. They could establish the committee in July; and 

he will set the dates for the Audit Committee to meet.  They would most likely bring the 

recommendations to Board at the October meeting as opposed to September.   

 

Chair Hodges said he is okay with Commissioner Good’s suggestion, and he thinks that is a good 

idea, but as far as the schedule, they would need more time to do it according to state statutes. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked what would be the criteria for the constituents on the committee.  

Commissioner Good said that it is no different than when any elected body chooses volunteers for 

a Board committee.  He said that the point is to have the public participate.   

 

Chair Hodges commented that this approval is to advertise and establish a committee, but they will 

not advertise until they have established a committee.  District Director Hart agreed with Chair 

Hodges.  He said they could approve a motion to advertise, and then establish the committee at the 

July Board meeting. 

 

District Director Hart then noted that Resolution No. 2012-07 may need to be revised to add 

additional members to the Audit Committee. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh noted that she is not against the public participating, but she felt under 

pressure with the dates, etc., and she did not feel comfortable being under pressure with all of this.  

Chair Hodges agreed with Commissioner Minnaugh.   

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall suggested that it should be changed in the future, because now 

there is discussion about revising the Resolution, etc.   

 



 

 -8- 

 

District Director Hart suggested that as an alternate, the Board could approve an additional 1-year 

extension to the contract that they currently have with the current auditor, and they could 

review/update and go through the process for next fiscal year. 

 

District Director Hart noted that the Board could approve an extension to the current contract for 

one additional year, and that would allow staff and the Board time to revise the Resolution and agree 

on the new process for establishing the Audit Committee.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh withdrew her previous motion to advertise for Annual Financial Auditing 

Services and to establish an Audit Committee. Commissioner Santana-Woodall, who had seconded 

the previous motion, withdrew her second of that previous motion. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion that the District extend the contract with the Auditor for 

another year and create new guidelines for appointing the Audit Committee.  Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall seconded the motion. 

 

Commissioner Good disagreed with the motion, and stated that the point about doing bidding is to 

keep the competition there.  He said that if there is a concern with the time, then just continue with 

the process as it is for now.     

 

Chair Hodges said that the consensus seems to be that they need more time.  The question was called 

and it was carried unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

D. SCHEDULE TENTATIVE BUDGET AND ASSESSMENT HEARINGS FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2017/2018  

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to schedule the Regular Board meeting to be held 

for Thursday, July 27th at 8:00 a.m. with the Draft Budget and Assessment Hearing at 8:30 a.m. 

and for the Final Budget and Assessment Hearing to be held on Monday, September 11th at 8:30 

a.m. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously. 

 

E. OTHER 

 

 Update on June 6-7 Storm Event – District Director Hart updated the Board on the rain storm 

that occurred between June 6th and June 8th.  He said that this was an extreme storm event that 

all of Broward County experienced; and that the big issue that received the most news was 

the Sawgrass Mills Mall that closed down for two or three days because of extreme flooding.  

The peak of the storm for SBDD was from Monday night to Wednesday morning, where in 

less than a 48 hour period, the District experienced rainfall amounts of 5.65” at the south end 

of the County to 12.63” at the S-8 Pump Station.  He said that the highest recorded rainfall 

was a 13.46” at Control Structure 13 which is out west in Basins 9 & 10.  Overall SBDD 

facilities performed very well.   

 

SBDD was running at full capacity for two straight days; all pumps were running that were 

permitted to run; staff was working around the clock to make sure that all facilities were 

working properly with no shut-downs or issues; there were overnight crews at all the trash 

racks making sure that the vegetation was kept under control.  SBDD received many phone 



 

 -9- 

 

calls from concerned residents saying they had never seen the water come up to the levels that 

they were at.  District Director Hart said that he was able to reassure the residents that SBDD 

was operating at full capacity, and that the gates were open and the pumps were running.  He 

was also able to explain to the public that the lakes were doing what they were designed to 

do, which is to store stormwater for flood protection.  He said that most of the public obtained 

their information from the SBDD webpage.   

 

District Director Hart said that SBDD has an emergency line where the public can leave an 

emergency message.  During the day, Reina Muniz is fielding all the calls.  SBDD received 

43 calls during the day and another 10-20 calls after hours.  We also received many calls from 

outside of SBDD.  Overall, the high majority were very positive.  He said that he got quite a 

few calls from the press.  Channel 10 called, and he was able to do an informational story to 

the public.  He also received a call from the radio station WIOD and several other calls from 

the press.  He said overall, everything was very positive and he thinks the District performed 

very well.   

 

District Director Hart commented that the District had rainfall and elevations that were 

somewhere between a 25-year event and a 50-year event.  He said that Sunrise and Plantation 

had it closer to a 100-year storm event.  Broward County had it at a 100-year, 12-hour storm 

event.   

 

District Director Hart said that they did a comparison of the recorded stages throughout the 

District with the SBDD Facilities Report, and found that across the board, our stages were at 

or below, what they were projected to be; which tells us that the system was functioning well.  

He believes it was due to SBDD’s ongoing maintenance program, and the Capital 

Improvement Plan that the District and the Board put into place, and the yearly completion of 

improvements to the motors, pumps and gear drives; culvert improvements; swale 

improvements; etc.  He commented that this just further emphasized to staff the importance 

to continue with that, and that those improvements continue to be funded moving forward.   

 

Vice Chair Ryan said he received some phone calls during the rain event and he contacted Mr. 

Ochoa who gave him a day-by-day/hour-by-hour update of what was happening.  He said that 

he would like a one-page or two-page narrative of what happened during those days.   

 

District Director Hart said that by design, roads are protected for a 10-year/3-day storm event, 

so that when you get that amount of water, the road should be passable and protected. Once 

you get past a 10-year storm, and progress to a 25-year and beyond, in many cases, the roads 

are starting to flood.  He said that although we received that much water, the only road that 

was seriously flooded was Dykes Road; and the stages on Dykes were exactly what they were 

projected to be for that amount of rainfall.  The road is still protected for a 10-year storm, but 

we had more rain than a 10-year storm.  He said that what was really interesting was that the 

majority of our roads were 100% passable without issues.   

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall said that most all the calls she received were in regards to 

clogged drains due to grass clippings.   

 

Commissioner Goggin commented that everyone received many phone calls, but amazingly 

enough, all of the District’s equipment, and all the things that were put in place did exactly 

what they were supposed to do.  He said that he likes the fact that SBDD was pro-active and 

that the District has been doing their due diligence to have everything in place and that the 



 

 -10- 

 

surrounding communities are looking back at SBDD.  He thanked everyone for all their work 

during the storm.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she felt the staff did a great job because SBDD 

looked phenomenal.  Especially when District Director Hart was on Channel 10, and he’s 

standing there and road behind him is perfectly dry, and the cars are moving just fine as we 

see visuals in other areas of people with their pants hiked up to the knees trying to walk 

through the streets.  She said that it also indicates the importance of all the money that was 

placed into maintenance, because those pumps were going 24/7, and if they had not done 

proper maintenance and upkeep, those pumps would’ve died.  She said that she was very 

pleased with the entire staff.  Not one house got water in it, no damage; and the District did 

what they were supposed to do, far superior to most areas. 

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall commented that the feedback she received from the owners 

of the houses that Mr. Joseph Certain went to check, was that Mr. Certain was so professional, 

that he answered their questions and got back to them quickly; he contacted the HOA and 

spoke to them right away.  She said that they were very impressed at how quickly the response 

was to their concerns.  Commissioner Santana-Woodall said that she was very pleased because 

it looks good on all of us.   

 

 

 Update current CIP – District Director Hart said that SBDD received their building permit 

and construction has actually begun on the maintenance garage.  The contractors have set up 

their trailer, and construction will probably pick up after July 4th.  He said they’ve had their 

pre-construction meeting and he’s very impressed with the Contractor, staff, and 

communication is going well.   

 

All the work on the motors are complete and in place for this year and are operational.  The 

two pumps that were rebuilt are in place.  All of them were operational during the storm.  The 

improvements on the S-3 was completed and the 55th Street drainage as well; which worked 

really well.  This week the District will be submitting to SFWMD the S-8 permit modification 

to get approval to add telemetry and motors to their gates along Griffin Road; and to be able 

to operate those under their existing basin permit.  All the design work is complete and they 

will be filing that application next week.  

 

Staff has done pricing on replacing generators at the S-7 and S-8 pump stations.  District 

Director Hart said that they will expect to have that at the July 27th Board meeting for approval.  

He said that they have also evaluated the B-1 pump station.  He is working on the plans for 

the joint project with SWR on some improvements to Dykes Road at the north end; to 

construct a canal from the Ivanhoe lake over to Dykes.  That should go out to bid over the 

next month for approval in September/October.   

 

 FASD Conference - District Director Hart attended the FASD Conference during the 

weekend after the heavy rains where he continued to get important information and 

networking at the conference.   

 

05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  

 
 None.   
 



 

 -11- 

 

06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Minnaugh. 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh had some questions regarding item #3 of the legal bills regarding a pool in the 

easement.  She wanted to know if the resident mentioned on that item, was supposed to reimburse the 
legal fees to SBDD.  She asked for clarification.     

 
 District Director Hart said that he will review that item and see if they can get that reimbursed by the 

resident.  Commissioner Minnaugh asked if they had a variance for the pool that encroaches in the 
easement and if they don’t how come; it should’ve come before the Board.  District Director Hart said 
that was the discussions he had with Attorney Bell.  He will look into it further.    

 
 The question was called and it was carried unanimously.  

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

 

   None.   

    

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, July 27, 2017 at 8:00 a.m. with Draft Budget Hearing 

for 2017/2018 Fiscal Year to be held at 8:30 a.m. 
B. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Monday, September 11th at 8:00 a.m. with 

Final Budget Hearing for 2017/2018 Fiscal Year to be held at 8:30 a.m. 
 

Adjournment at 9:47 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

                                                                            

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 



































































































DOUGLAS R. BELL
ATTORNEY AT LAW

CUMBERLAND BUILDING, SUITE 505
800 E BROWARD BOULEVARD

FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
(954) 524-8526

July 19, 2017

South Broward Drainage District
6591 Southwest 160th Avenue
Southwest Ranches, Florida 33331

*I N V O I C E*

Legal services rendered on behalf of South Broward Drainage District from June 22, 2017
through July 18, 2017:

1. Coordination regarding Surplus Property (Land) Policy:

Attorney's Fees:       45 minutes @ $250.00/hr. = $ 187.50

2. Coordination regarding District Budget for 2017/18:
(Update Use Codes and Subdistrict Designations)

Attorney's Fees:  11 hrs.  5 min. @ $250.00/hr. = $ 2,770.83

3. Coordination regarding Auditor Procedures:

Attorney's Fees:  1 hr.  30 min. @ $250.00/hr. = $ 375.00

****************

TOTAL DUE THIS INVOICE: $ 3,333.33


